

Hospice Palliative Care of Greater Moncton Inc. / Hospice de Soins Palliatifs du Grand Moncton Inc.

2015 Annual Report January-December, 2015

Presented at the Annual General Meeting of May 19, 2016

HumLewSun Lions Club 156 Pleasant Street, Lewisville, Moncton

Hospice Greater Moncton-du grand Moncton 164 Collishaw Street Moncton, NB E1C 9R3

> Ph: 506.383.2404 Fax: 506.383.6462 Email: <u>info@hospicegm.ca</u> Website: <u>www.hospicegm.ca</u>

Table of Contents

Table of Contents

Agenda

Minutes of 2014 AGM held May 14, 2015

Nominating Committee

President's Report

Treasurer's Report

Building Committee

Programs Reports

- Community Care Report
- Grief Group Report

Shoppe Report

Executive Director's Report

In Memorials and Sponsors

2015 Financial Statements (under separate cover)

AGENDA

Call the meeting to order; establish Quorum	Jamie Penfold, President
Welcome, introduction, and announcements	Jamie Penfold, President
Proof of Notice of Annual General Meeting	Payson Rowell, Secretary
Motion to Adopt Minutes of May 2015 AGM	Jamie Penfold, President
Nominating Committee Report	Dave Parker
Introduction of Board Members	Board members
President's Report and Comments	Jamie Penfold, President
Notice of By-law addendums*	Jamie Penfold, President
Financial Report	Bill Lane, Treasurer
Appointment of Accounting Review Firm	Bill Lane, Treasurer
Executive Director Report summary	Joanne Adair, Executive Director
Recognition of out-going Board members	Jamie Penfold, President
Question and Answer	Audience and Board members
Thanks and Closing Remarks	Jamie Penfold, President
Motion to Adjourn	

Meet and Greet

A. Minutes of AGM, May 14, 2015

CALL TO ORDER

The 2014 Annual General Meeting was convened at 7:00PM by President Jamie Penfold in Rose Hall, 55 Camden Court, following the 6:30PM reception. Approximately 60 people were present, satisfying the requirement of a quorum.

ATTENDENCE

Present were Hospice volunteers and staff as well as members of the public and members of the Board of Directors as follows: Bob Cameron, Gary Chesser, Stephen Claxton-Oldfield, Bill Lane, Brian Lily, George Lyons, David Parker, Jamie Penfold, Pat Phelan, Payson Rowell, Sharon Thieverge and Executive Director Joanne Adair. Special guests Gordon Hicks representing the Hum-Lew-Sun Lions Clubs and past-members of the Hospice Board Jack Cameron and Doug MacEachern were recognized by President Penfold.

LETTER OF SUPPORT

President Penfold noted a letter of support from the New Brunswick Hospice Palliative Care Association, the province-wide organization which is addressing the Province of New Brunswick on behalf of the several hospices seeking to establish residential hospice care in the Province.

PROOF OF NOTICE

Secretary Payson Rowell reported the Shoppe and the Times & Transcript official notice for the Annual General Meeting.

MINUTES APPROVED

Minutes of the 2013 Annual General Meeting, held June 12, 2014 were approved as circulated after being duly moved and seconded by members of the Board of Directors.

NOMINATING COMMITTEE REPORT

Gary Chesser gave the Nominating Committee report.

Members and officers as approved by the May 14, 2015 Board of Directors' Meeting are:

Jamie Penfold	President
Bob Cameron	1st Vice-President
Gary Chesser	2nd Vice President
Bill Lane	Treasurer
Payson Rowell	Secretary
Dennis Cochrane	Director
Brian Lily	Director
Dave Parker	Director
Sharon Thivierge	Director
Joanne Adair	Executive Director, ex-officio
Jack Cameron	Honorary Member
Doug MacEachern	Honorary Member

The board members introduced themselves to the attendees.

VOLUNTEER APPRECIATION

Joann Adair recognized the invaluable work and years of service of the volunteers present.

PRESIDENT'S REPORTS AND COMMENTS

President Jamie Penfold gave the president's report as provided to the attendees.

NOTICE OF BY-LAW CHANGES

President Penfold reported changes made during the year to by-law 7.13 re quorum and to by-law 7.5 re terms of office.

FINANCIAL REPORT

Treasurer Bill Lane gave the Financial Report and the Financial Statements for the year ending December 31, 2014. Presently, \$265,000 is accrued towards the construction of the residential hospice. LeBlanc Scott Chartered Professional Accountants provided the Review Engagement Report for the 2014 operations.

APPOINTMENT OF ACCOUNTING REVIEW FIRM

Treasurer Lane reported the Board of Directors has appointed LeBlanc Scott CPA to provide the review engagement report for the year ending December 31, 2015.

2014 CONDENSED REPORTS

Executive Director Joanne Adair, Grief & Bereavement Co-ordinator Ruth Johnston, Community Co-ordinator Debbie Gilbert-King and Shoppe Manager Ranetha Murphy gave the condensed reports for 2014.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Joanne Adair reported the many highlights of 2014 and identified goals for 2015. Joanne thanked the board, the volunteers and the staff for their support and assistance.

PRESENTATION OF GIFTS

President Penfold presented retiring Board members Pat Phelan and Stephen Claxton-Oldfield with a token of appreciation for their service.

QUESTION AND ANSWER PERIOD

Joanne chaired the question and answer period.

CLOSING REMARKS

President Penfold thanked the volunteers and the staff for all their dedication and hard work.

MOTION TO ADJOURN

The meeting was adjourned at 8:20PM by President Penfold upon the motion of Payson Rowell.

Jamie Penfold, President ------Payson Rowell, Secretary

Page 6

B. NOMINATING COMMITTEE REPORT

Board of Officers and Directors 2016-17 as approved at the Board meeting of May 19, 2016.

Name Jamie Penfold Gary Chesser Dennis Cochrane Bill Lane (To be named) Payson Rowell Brian Lilly Sharon Thivierge (to be named) (to be named) (to be named) Jack Cameron Doug MacEachern	Office President 1 st VP 2 nd VP Treasurer Secretary Director Director Director Director Director Director Director Director Honorary Member
Doug MacEachern	Honorary Member
Joanne Adair	Executive Director, ex-officio

Bob Cameron and Dave Parker have completed the third year of their second term, which is the limit of consecutive terms. They believe in the mission of HGM to provide support to palliative clients and have worked diligently to provide the needed financial stability to accomplish this goal as well as to build a sustainable residential hospice building fund. On behalf of the entire Board, thank you for your dedication and commitment.

Stephen Claxton-Oldfield re-joined the Board as ratified by the Board on August 19, 2015 but has regretfully resigned due to other outstanding commitments and travel. We appreciate his continued support.

We are confirming the acceptance by the remaining Directors to complete their terms of office.

The approval of other nominated persons as Directors will be voted upon by the Board on May 19 just prior to the AGM and so the names are not confirmed at the time of printing this report.

With this slate we fulfill the requirements of By-Law 7.1 "...Board of Directors, consisting of not more than eleven (11) and not less than five (5) elected persons..."

Respectfully submitted,

Nominating Committee Sharon Thivierge Dave Parker Jamie Penfold

C. President's Report

Welcome to all, including our Honorary President, Jack Cameron, Honorary Board Member Rev. Doug MacEachern, Fellow Board Members, staff, volunteers, Ladies and Gentlemen.

HGM continues to carry out its mandate to provide volunteer-based in-home palliative care services, facilitate grief and bereavement support groups and provide training and support for Shoppe and in-home volunteers.

Last year as I delivered this report, I predicted 2015 would be a positive and dynamic time for HGM. My prediction was correct. The Hospice Shoppe Boutique moved from its former Mountain Rd. location to 164 Collishaw St. This has been a positive move in so many ways: The new location offers better visibility, layout, parking and improved customer access. More importantly, the rent is lower. There has been much positive feedback from the public about the Shoppe's new location. Since it opened in November, Shoppe expenses have been under-budget and net revenues above budget. This is encouraging as the Hospice Shoppe provides an earned revenue stream for self-sustainability for HGM and its programmes. Much credit goes to Shoppe staff and volunteers for executing the relocation with military precision and efficiency.

Late 2015 also marked the relocation of the offices of the Executive Director and Community Coordinator from Camden Terrace to the Collishaw St. location. Our operations are under one roof now. We do thank Camden Terrace for their continued support of our organization, providing us with meeting space for our Board meetings.

In addition to fulfilling its existing mandate, the Board has explored several options for the realization of our goal of establishing and sustaining the operation of a 10 bed Residential Hospice. We continue to be a member of the NB Residential Hospice Committee within the NBHPCA where ideas are exchanged between Hospice groups. A business plan was developed based on the model of multiyear funding shared between provincial government and HGM. In February2016, Board representatives met with government representatives in Fredericton. These included VP's from Horizon and Vitalite Networks as well as representatives from the NB Cancer Care Network and Extramural Nursing. We presented our case and although the government is supportive of our goals, they are in the early stages of developing a palliative care strategy, and could provide no clear commitment to funding at this time. We are committed to maintaining communication with the government so that we are apprised of developments as their strategy forms. The concept of equitable end-of-life care is a shared goal.

We are grateful for the donations from individuals, corporations, businesses and local service groups. This generosity encourages us to continue our efforts to provide palliative care services to the Greater Moncton community. Fundraising events also contribute to providing financial support for our programmes and the Residential Hospice building fund. Committees are in place to develop a calendar of such events including some minor and one or two major fundraising events per year. We are hoping to launch our Capital Campaign in 2017.

A successful fundraising event was "An Evening with Rossano's" which was held last June and was generously supported by Gregg and Sue Ross. Tickets were sold out for the event. It is on June 6 this year and promises to be an entertaining evening for a worthy cause. We have hired an event planner to assist us with fundraising activities.

A priority for the upcoming year is to develop a wider public profile. Promotion of our services and our mandate is critical in raising financial support for our programmes. Public awareness and education through social media

and a revamped website would attract donations and participation in our fundraising events. New print material is being developed to provide education about HGM and issues related to Palliative Care. Our Executive Director, Joanne Adair, has been giving presentations to various community groups and local politicians to promote HGM. We have had media coverage on TV, radio and local print media.

Organizations such as HGM could not function without dedicated staff. Joanne Adair continues as our enthusiastic Executive Director, unfazed by her recent mobility challenges. I have been impressed at how capably other members of our staff have stepped up to assist in performing some of her duties when she has not been able to do so herself. Joanne has a vision of how our organization could develop and function and motivates us to work toward achieving these goals. Debbie Gilbert-King continues to serve as Community Coordinator, matching palliative clients with in-home volunteers. She trains in-home and shop volunteers and assists with HGM events. Ranetha Murphy is our capable Shoppe Manager, assisted by Assistant Manager Dianne Logan and staffers Donna Parker, Ann McLaughlin and Kathy Isaac. They provide a friendly shopping experience.

The Board of Directors meets monthly, and sometimes more frequently if they serve on the Executive or special committees. The directors provide valuable support and expertise to HGM. This year marks the departures of Bob Cameron and Dave Parker from the Board. Each of them have completed 2 three year terms, having served HGM since 2010. On behalf of the Board and HGM, I thank Bob and Dave for their volunteer service. They have been instrumental in bringing HGM to where it is today. Stephen Claxton-Oldfield is unable to complete his second term due to other commitments. We are grateful that he will continue to serve on committees and provide his unique expertise.

I continue to be encouraged by the commitment of our staff and volunteers to the causes of HGM. The collaboration between staff and volunteers works well. The staffs manages day-to-day operations and our volunteers provide the services offered by HGM, whether they work at the Shoppe, provide in-home support with clients and their families, help at special events, or facilitate grief and bereavement groups. Volunteers are critical to the success of HGM's programmes. The Board of Directors volunteers their time as well. We are all committed toward the same goal of providing quality palliative care services and support to those individuals and their families living with life-limiting conditions.

In conclusion, thank you to all of you who support HGM. I am grateful to the volunteers for your commitment to this organization. My fellow Board members, thank you for offering your time and expertise as we work toward achieving the goals set out before us. The talent and dedication of the staff members is much appreciated.

I anticipate significant developments and achievements for HGM in 2016.

Respectfully submitted,

Jamie Penfold, President.

D. TREASURER'S REPORT

Hospice Greater Moncton had a good financial year in 2015. Although the net contribution was lower than 2014, the results from Donations, Fundraising and the Hospice Shoppe generated \$24,000 which continues the accumulation of capital towards the goal of building Moncton's own Palliative Care Residence. The challenges overcome to achieve this amount included a very bad winter in 2015 causing several closures at the Shoppe and late in 2016 the cost and complexity of relocating the Shoppe.

It should be emphasized that the new Shoppe location has proven to be an excellent decision with substantial sales increases and positive comments from our customers in addition to a rent decrease of over 25%.

At Dec 31/15 the organization has accumulated \$273,000 in cash and equivalents towards the goal of \$500,000 in cash to start the Building construction. This was only a modest growth over 2014 but is after the investment of \$36,000 in renovations for the new Shoppe location.

The Executive and Board take their roles and responsibilities seriously in making sure proper policies are created and implemented to ensure safeguarding of the assets. Secondly, members of the Board actively participate on many committees to support the Hospice organization, including the volunteers, in finding ways to execute programs and events successfully.

2016 is a key year for HGM as we need to maximize the benefits from the new Shoppe location as well as various Fundraising activities to generate a new level of sustainable cash flow which we can set as the benchmark for the future of HGM.

The 2015 Financial Statements as prepared by the accounting firm Leblanc Scott CPA provide more detail in terms of the balance sheet and operations for the Hospice Greater Moncton. The external accountants confirmed the books and records of the HGM were in good order which provides comfort that management is handling the financial aspects of the organization in a prudent manner.

Respectfully Submitted,

William Lane Treasurer

E. BUILDING COMMITTEE REPORT

This committee gathered information on building design and costs, and furnishing requirements during meetings with a local nursing home operator and architect. This information was presented to the Board as part of the needed preparations for a business plan.

GEMTECH Engineering did soil testing (4 test pits) at Pleasant Street and reported there are no soil impediments to building a residential hospice on this land donated by the HumLewSun Lions Club.

Respectfully submitted,

Building Committee Dave Parker Gary Chesser Brian Harknett, HumLewSun Lions Club representative

F. Programs and Services Reports

1. Community Palliative Care report

During my time with Hospice in 2015 I had the privilege to meet 18 wonderful people who were going through their final journey, 7 of whom choose to use our service. This year we provide not only respite care but on a number of occasions we had multiple volunteers in the homes to help with drives and appointment. After the loss of a patient we do two separate follow ups, first a condolence card is sent out to the family, as well as, to the volunteer(s) who worked with the patient. After six months have passed another card is sent reminding the family we are still here if they need us in the form of Grief Support and we let them know about any specific Grief Groups that are coming up.

In 2015 we were able to train and bring on board 11 new in home volunteers bringing our number to 26 active volunteers that are available to go into the homes and give a much needed support to the families and clients.

At the Shoppe level we continue to have the faithful volunteers who come in each week, working diligently sorting, organizing, cleaning and selling. We have 43 active Shoppe Volunteers with 33 coming in on a regular basis.

We also have 22 volunteers that are faithful event volunteers, coming in and helping prepare for and /or the day of the event. Over all I've found that many of our volunteers wear a variety of hats, working with clients, working at the Shoppe and helping with whatever events are going on. In total we currently have 91 active volunteers.

In the fall of 2015 I was able to meet with the Nurses at the Petitcodiac Health Center; the Discharge Planning Nurse in the Sackville Memorial Hospital as well as the Nurse Manager at the Oncology Clinic at the Moncton City Hospital. The meetings were focused on the In Home and Grief services available form Hospice Greater Moncton and how we can help in the community.

Over the last year I worked on a number of events and activities which included:

- 50/50 Draw, the tickets were sold from January to June at various venues
- Hike for Hospice held on May 3rd, with 50 Hikers and lots of Sunshine
- An Evening In Italy held on June 15th
- Fashion Show and Shoppe at The Camden with a great turn out and very happy residence
- POP Up Shoppe at The Camden which provided an afternoon of shopping, music and Iced tea

We had volunteers at Two Seniors Friendly Expos providing information about Hospice Greater Moncton

Our Final Event was Angels remembered, this year we were able to have paper angels for donations at the cash registers in all the Kent Building Supply Stores in Greater Moncton as well as booths set up at various locations around the city.

Submitted Debbie Gilbert-King, Community Coordinator

2. Grief and Bereavement Group Report

Spring session, March 2015

We had 14 members who had lost a child or a parent or a spouse or a relative attend this 7 week course. Great discussions were held each week, with 2 video nights and speakers for a couple nights were Sarah Lord, Robert Scott, Rev. MacEacheron and Carolle Donelle.

After the sessions ended, we got together for a coffee night a few weeks later and we had a good number attend.

Fall session, September 2015

We had 10 to 12 members attend this session. It was a very emotional group since several had lost a child. It worked well and lots of good ideas were discussed.

Speakers Carole Donelle and Sarah Lord came and shared, and Rev. MacEacheron spoke one night. A few of these people attended a supper date a few weeks later.

Ruth I had 2 awesome Two awesome speakers who received help years before from the group I put in 21 hrs.and my two helpers also

Several of the attendees were send by their Doctor's; it is nice the word gets out there.

A big Thankyou to Dianne Tingley and Rose Hubley for their help each night.

Submitted:

Ruth Johnston Coping with Grief Facilitator

G. 2015 Shoppe Report

Hospice Shoppe Relocation

Relocation of the Hospice Shoppe from 1075 Mountain Road to 164 Collishaw Street was a major event in 2015. Summer clearance sales were held to reduce stock and extra staffing and volunteers were required. The store was moved and reopened on November 2, 2015. Since then, the Hospice Shoppe has benefiting from better parking, easier access from main road ways, and a more efficient store layout. The additional square footage allowed more merchandise to be displayed for purchase and the store has increased its sales each month.

Customers continuously comment on the improved shopping experience and store has also expanded its community exposure. Our reputation is growing and everyday there are more new shoppers coming in for the first time.

For the coming year, the store will continue focusing on providing quality merchandise at reasonable prices, wonderful customer service and attractive in-store specials to increase sales and raise funds for the organization.

Merchandising

Women's clothing continues to be the store's dominant seller. In addition, there is a consistent increase in children's items and men's clothing sales. Thank you to Greg Turner (Colpitts Men's Wear) and Mike Roth (Liptay Auction) who assisted improving the organization of the store. The store continues to market merchandise and in-store specials on Facebook and Kijiji to draw more new customers and maintain the interest of existing customers. The store has also increased its online presence through third party online auctions for collectibles and specialty items.

Donations

Donations, as with last year, have been increasing and the store is seeing more quality items, including a larger number of collectibles and other specialty items being donated. Dianne Logan now supervises operations in the warehouse fulltime. In this new role she brings more efficiency for training and supervising volunteers in the donations area. Having full time supervisor in the warehouse improves the quality of merchandise and consistency of prices. Also, the store is able to minimize/reduce errors in collecting donor information and better respond to queries or issues that might arise.

One challenge of the new location is the decreased space for receiving, sorting and storing merchandise. Store management will need to continuously work together on the acceptance of donations, the organization of incoming donations and rate of merchandise turnover in the store.

Volunteers and Staffing

Since the store relocated to 164 Collishaw Street, 13 new volunteers have been added to the schedule and there continue to be more inquiries to volunteer at the store. This has provided much needed additional staffing for an increased volume of incoming donations and replacement staffing for when current volunteers are unable to work. The volunteer and staff handbook was updated is now used as part of new volunteer/staff orientation. The store will continue promote volunteering at the store to increase the pool of available volunteers for regular and replacement shifts.

The Hospice Shoppe has also increased its paid staff to 2.5 per day. This increased was very much needed to better serve customers at the cash and for personal shopping assistance, restock merchandise and provide reliable staffing for when volunteers are unable to work. The store is now seeing peak times every day between 11am – 3pm and having additional staffing along with shop volunteers provides a great team of people working together to keep the store operating smoothly. Submitted: Ranetha Murphy

Shoppe Manager

Page 14

H. Executive Director Report

Hospice Greater Moncton is committed to our mission to support individuals and their families through their end-of-life journey by providing "Compassionate care, celebrating life...even when there is no cure".

Our Programs and Services

Our programs and services - Community Palliative Care, Caregiver Care and Bereavement Care - continue to be offered free of charge to clients and their loved ones, with thanks to the support of our dedicated volunteers, our donors and our sponsors. We have volunteers available in the area from Petticodiac, Greater Moncton to Hillsborough and the Tantramar region.

We are committed to increasing the number of referrals and the types of services we can provide, as well as supporting our volunteers. The Guidelines for Community Palliative Care was finalized in 2015, providing an easy reference for clients and volunteer activities.

- Community Palliative Care Clients: 18 clients received companionship and support
- Coping with Grief Clients: 30 clients received support in our Spring and Fall sessions.

Our Volunteers

In continued support for our Community Palliative Care Volunteers, a refresher session for 8 community care volunteers was held. We also welcomed 13 new Community Palliative Care Volunteers who completed the CHPCA training sessions.

A 'pre-shift' communication session was started to effectively communicate the days' needs and plan with the Shoppe volunteers. Placing a staff person in the donation area on a full-time basis has provided consistent merchandise selection decisions and pricing.

- Coping with Grief Volunteers: 3 people volunteer to facilitate the groups, supporting HGM with more than 150 hours
- Community Palliative Care Volunteers: 20 volunteers supported 18 clients; we have 26 volunteers available, 16 of whom were newly trained in 2015, supporting HGM with 394 hours
- Shoppe Volunteers: up to 56 volunteer a month, supporting HGM with 5729 hours
- Event Volunteers: 39 total with 6 new, supporting HGM with 520 hrs

Our Events

Events such as the Hike for Hospice, An Evening at Rossano's and Angels Remembered were not only successful in raising much needed funds, but they have also helped raise our profile and spread our message about the value of hospice palliative care. With your support, we look to continued growth of these events.

We now have a wireless debit/credit machine and this has been a great help for ticket sales when we are at booths in the community. We held a new "pop-up" shop and a Fashion Show at Camden and sold 543 of the 1000 50-50 tickets and presented a cheque for \$5430 to the winner.

Shoppe

Highlights include:

- The new Children's section has proven an attraction to new shoppers
- Extended summer hours began on June
- We celebrated a successful Christmas in July at the Shoppe
- We celebrated 5 successful years in business November!
- We welcomed 502 new Shoppe Donors registered in 2015 and 247 so far in May 2016

The biggest event was no doubt moving the Shoppe to our new location at 164 Collishaw St. We began to review the Shoppe lease in February, and after viewing several locations, we moved late October. Saying a plain "Thank you" to staff and volunteers seems insufficient when I recall their never-ending smiles and cheerful demeanor, even in the face of the huge mountain of donated items to go thru.

Thank you!

Public Awareness

Opportunities to increase public awareness included several speaking engagements and media interviews with CBC Radio and Moncton Times&Transcript. As well, I was able to speak about hospice care with our local PC MLA's at their offices, and with the Liberal, NDP and Green federal candidates during a political round table hosted by the Canadian Nurses Assoc in September.

Volunteers attended a presentation and reception in February to hear updates from the Board, for the Shoppe, for the client and volunteer programs.

New events included joining Ian Bos in his Walk across Canada to raise awareness of hospice palliative care; and holding our first Death Café with twelve people ranging in age from early 20's to late 70's joined in conversation.

I sit on the Board of the NBHPCA and on the THPCO committee.

Residential Hospice

The NBHPCA has formed a provincial committee of residential hospice organizations to "speak as one voice" to government on residential hospices. The Minister of Health arranged a meeting for us with Atlantic Cancer Research Institute in March of 2015. We were well received and they expressed appreciation that we coming to them as a group.

Dr. Pam Mansfield and I met with Rick Firth, ED President and CEO of Hospice Palliative Care Ontario, and spoke about funding models, government relations, etc. Sustainable funding continues to be a concern.

GEMTECH Engineering did soil testing (they dug 4 test pits) at Pleasant Street and reported there are no soil impediments to building a residential hospice on this land donated by the HumLewSun Lions Club.

I attended a webinar on "Design Lessons Learned" from The Green House Project, describing design elements to consider for a residence.

Thank you!

To the Board for their support, for volunteers for their cheerfulness, to staff for their dedication – we accomplish so much together!

Submitted,

Joanne Adair Executive Director

I. Our Supporters - All gifts are important and all are appreciated.

We are honoured to be named as the "In Memory of" charity for the following people in 2015.

		8 beebie = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = =
Al Hebert	Frank Gallagher	Melissa Leslie
Arlington Mair	Frank Trembley	Michael Fearon
Arthur Cox	Gary Joseph Adams	Mr. Cassidy
Barbara Rietzel	George Samson	Mrs Lewis
Bernice Robinson	Gerald & Ada Herman	Pat Comfort
Bertha Louise McBeath	Ivan Killan	Patrick Murphy & Wade Wry
(Sullivan)	James D Stevens	Paul Surette
Brian William Leo Agnew	Jan Sydner	Reta J Saunders
Carol Sullivan	Jane Beck	Ron Allen
Cindy Copp	Jean Morton	Rosalie Steeves
Clarence Gauvin	Jerry Crew	Shirley Corazza
Dennis Madden	John Nathan Ryan	Stan Beers
Diane Read Geddes	Leo DesRoches	Tom Kinnear
Doug Murray	Margaret Bateman	Vaughan Milton
Ed Pitre	Margaret Teed	Yves Maynard
Ed Taylor	Maria Eagle	
Edith Wareham	Marjorie Cannon	

Thanks to our corporate sponsors in 2015.

Elma Martin

St. John's United Church
The Town of Riverview
Tantramar Hospice Palliative Care
People's Park Tower
Retired Nurses Group
CN Railroaders in the Community
Mountain View United Church
Parkland Industries Ltd
Moncton Miniature Doll Club

Irving Consumer Products Ltd Visions United Church Medavie Blue Cross Fairhaven Funeral Home Moncton Typographical Union TNG Walmart Canada Corp Running Room Ltd Rossano's Italian Grill LTB Bowling League at Fairlanes

Thanks to our corporate supporters for providing in-kind support in 2015.Kent Building SuppliesAtlantic Hospitably Technologies SolutionsGEMTECH EngineeringMonarch Construction